
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU 

 
 

 
 

Strategic Environment 
Cabinet Committee 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Members of the Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee of Gravesham Borough Council 
are summoned to attend a meeting to be held at the Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Windmill 
Street, Gravesend DA12 1AU on Wednesday, 29 March 2023 at 7.30 pm when the business 
specified in the following agenda is proposed to be transacted. 
 
 

 
S Walsh 
Service Manager (Communities) 
 
 

Agenda 
 

Part A 
Items likely to be considered in Public 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6) 

3. Declarations of Interest   

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or any items in Part B in public  

 

5. Review of the Local Validation List  (Pages 7 - 18) 

6. Q3 2022-23 Corporate Performance Report  (Pages 19 - 30) 

7. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter or urgency.  

 

8. Exclusion   

 To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local  



Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of the business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part A of Schedule 12A of the Act.  
 

Part B  
 

Items likely to be considered in Private  
 

 
None.  
 
 
Members 
 
Cllr Lauren Sullivan (Chair) 
Cllr Brian Sangha (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors: Dakota Dibben 

Brian Francis 
Leslie Hills 
Leslie Hoskins 
Nirmal Khabra 
Bob Lane 
Emma Morley 
 

 
Substitutes: To be notified 



1 

Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee 
 

Tuesday, 14 February 2023 7.30 pm 
 
 

Present: 
 
Cllr Lauren Sullivan (Chair) 
Cllr Brian Sangha (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors: Dakota Dibben 

Brian Francis 
Balijit Hayre 
Leslie Hills 
Leslie Hoskins 
Bob Lane 
Emma Morley 
 

Wendy Lane 
Tom Reynolds 
Glyn Tully 
Renzo Campisi 
Karen Gingles 

Assistant Director (Planning) 
Assistant Director (Strategic Regeneration) 
Associate Director, Head of Urban Design – Levitt Bernstein 
Senior Architect – Levitt Bernstein 
Committee Services Officer (Minutes) 

 
  

125. Apologies for Absence  
 
An apology for absence was received from Cllr Nirmal Khabra.  Cllr Baljit Hayre was his 
substitute. An apology for absence was also received from Cllr Harold Craske. 
 

126. Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 22 November 2022 were signed by the Chair. 
 

127. Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

128. Design for Gravesham - update  
 
The Assistant Director (Strategic Regeneration) introduced Glyn Tully and Renzo Campisi 
from Levitt Bernstein, who presented the Committee with an update on the Design for 
Gravesham.  The presentation can be viewed via the following link (Public Pack)Design For 
Gravesham Update - Supplementary Agenda Supplement for Strategic Environment Cabinet 
Committee, 14/02/2023 19:30 
 
The presentation outlined the process that would be undertaken to provide Gravesham with 
a design code for quality and sustainable regeneration for future development and 
regeneration.  Members were advised that the framework created in the finished document 
could follow the Council’s principles of Place, People and Progress: 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 2

https://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/documents/b16887/Design%20For%20Gravesham%20Update%20-%20Supplementary%20Tuesday%2014-Feb-2023%2019.30%20Strategic%20Environment%20Cabin.pdf?T=9
https://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/documents/b16887/Design%20For%20Gravesham%20Update%20-%20Supplementary%20Tuesday%2014-Feb-2023%2019.30%20Strategic%20Environment%20Cabin.pdf?T=9
https://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/documents/b16887/Design%20For%20Gravesham%20Update%20-%20Supplementary%20Tuesday%2014-Feb-2023%2019.30%20Strategic%20Environment%20Cabin.pdf?T=9


Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee 14.02.2023 

2 

 Place - Enhancing the borough’s heritage, landscape and character, valuing the 
unique character of each area of the borough.  

 People – Engaging with the community and stakeholders by holding workshop 
events to listen to local stories and testimonials.   

 Progress – Providing sustainable and quality design principles for new developers 
and a framework for community and place led regeneration. 

 
The Committee were advised of the step by step process to completion and informed the 
project was currently at stage one, initial engagement.  Members were updated that an 
online survey would be launched very soon plus there would be local engagement events 
planned in March. 
 
The Committee were invited to ask questions and to make comment: 
 

 Clarity was sought regarding timescales for the process of completion of the design 
code.  Members were informed that the stage one preliminary engagement process 
was hoped to be completed by 17th March 2023 before the pre-election period.  It 
was expected that a draft of the design code be available in September 2023, with a 
six-week consultation period to follow (as the ambition is for the design code to be 
adopted as a planning document).  It was hoped that the adoption of the new design 
code would be towards the end of November/early December 2023 (subject to 
internal governance approval process). 
 

 The Assistant Director (Strategic Regeneration) informed Members that he had 
conducted Ward walks with Members and had met with community groups and was 
keen to continue to do so.  

 
The Chair advised Members that the Government had asked all local authorities to 
develop a design code that would stand the test of time and set a standard for future 
developers.   This code would give guidance of what the Planning Authority were 
looking for in a development.  The design would be created with the voices of the 
community in mind, in setting the framework. 
 

 The Committee queried how transport would be considered as part of the design 
code.  Members were advised that transport was key and consideration would be 
given to the changing modes of transport and so there would need to be flexibility 
within the document.  There would also need to be an understanding of active travel 
routes along with the impact of the future Lower Thames Crossing.  Members were 
notified that a PTAL (Public Transport Accessibility Levels) study could be a method 
used to develop a parking strategy. 
 

 Levitt Bernstein advised that feedback from Ward walks had already proved very 
useful and had been fed into the work undertaken so far.  Research through public 
engagement would continue and would be ongoing throughout the development of 
the document.  The document would be of use to both planning officers and the 
residents, being easily accessible and simple in understanding the Council’s 
expectations. 
 

 The Assistant Director (Strategic Regeneration) informed the Committee that the 
design code could influence future developments once adopted.  Developments that 
had already received planning permission would not be impacted by the new 

Page 4



Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee 14.02.2023 

3 

framework and would need to be acknowledged as part of the development of the 
code. 
 

 Members asked if industry could be incorporated within the code, enabling the 
Council to encourage high quality industry and commerce in the borough. 
 

The Chair thanked Levitt Bernstein for taking the time to present the plans for Design for 
Gravesham to the Committee and advised that The Assistant Director (Strategic 
Regeneration) would share with Members any example codes Levitt Bernstein provide.   
 
The Committee noted the presentation. 
 
 

129. Levelling-up and Regeneration Bill: Consultation on draft National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  
 
The Committee were presented with the Levelling-up and Regeneration Bill:  Consultation on 
the draft National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).  The presentation can be viewed via 
the following link (Public Pack)Levelling-up And Regeneration Bill - Consultation on Draft 
National Policy Framework - Supplementary Agenda Supplement for Strategic Environment 
Cabinet Committee, 14/02/2023 19:30 (gravesham.gov.uk) 
 
The Committee were informed that the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities (DLUHC) consultation, would close on 2 March 2023 and had sought the 
Council’s views with a series of questions.  The Assistant Director (Planning) advised that 
there would be a further and fuller update of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
once the Levelling up and Regeneration Act was in place.   
 
Following the presentation, the Committee were invited to ask questions and make 
comment: 
 

 The Chair queried if the Council had received clarification on Gravesham’s housing 
target.  The Assistant Director (Planning) advised that the standard method guidance 
specified a starting projection of 707 homes per year. 
 

 The Chair noted that the elements addressed within the consultation had increased 
clarity and would benefit Gravesham in controlling what developers were permitted to 
carry out.  Members agreed that the National Planning Policy Framework gave Local 
Authorities control over development within the borough. 
 

 Clarification was sought regarding the timescale for the Planning Inspectorate to 
carry out the work required, in light of the upcoming elections.  The Assistant Director 
(Planning) informed the Committee that the Planning Inspectorate had experienced 
issues for a while, with the number of inspectors available to carry out Local Plan 
examinations, with many retiring and recruitment issues.  The Assistant Director 
(Planning) alluded that a number of local authorities had stopped plan production, as 
a result of the announcement, as wanted to know the national policy context.   
 

 The Assistant Director (Planning) advised she was unsure how long the Government 
had to consider Gravesham’s comments from the consultation as there was a clear 
desire for the revised NPPF to be in place in Spring 2023.  Some of the changes 

Page 5

https://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/documents/b16886/Levelling-up%20And%20Regeneration%20Bill%20-%20Consultation%20on%20Draft%20National%20Policy%20Framework%20-%20Supplementary.pdf?T=9
https://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/documents/b16886/Levelling-up%20And%20Regeneration%20Bill%20-%20Consultation%20on%20Draft%20National%20Policy%20Framework%20-%20Supplementary.pdf?T=9
https://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/documents/b16886/Levelling-up%20And%20Regeneration%20Bill%20-%20Consultation%20on%20Draft%20National%20Policy%20Framework%20-%20Supplementary.pdf?T=9


Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee 14.02.2023 

4 

required legislative changes so that  would take time.  The Assistant Director 
(Planning) advised Members that when drafting a response to Government, she 
would raise the concern related to capacity within the Planning Inspectorate to deal 
with the proposed new plan-making system 
 

 Concern was raised on how the National Planning Policy Framework would impact 
on the work already carried on the Local Plan.  The Assistant Director (Planning) 
informed members that the National Planning Policy Framework was a material 
consideration for planning decisions and for plan-making there is the need for the 
emerging plan to be consistency with the NPPF and she believed that these revisions 
clarified areas of uncertainty.  The Committee were advised that the Local Plan was 
adopted in 2014 and reviewed in 2019.  The emerging plan will be updated to reflect 
the revised evidence base and the national planning policy framework in place.  The 
Assistant Director (Planning) informed Members that the plan would be brought to 
Full Council for approval for the pre-submission consultation stage and this was 
anticipated to be late 2023.  

 
The Chair concluded and noted the importance of an update due to the ever-changing 
guidance presented. 
 
The Committee noted the presentation. 
 
 
 Close of meeting  
 
The meeting ended at 9:16pm 
 
 

Page 6



 

Classification: Private 

Key Decision: Yes 

Gravesham Borough Council 

Report to: Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee 
 

Date: 29 March 2023 

Reporting officer: Assistant Director (Planning) 

Subject: Review of the Local Validation List  

Purpose and summary of report:  

The Council’s local list of validation requirements sets out information we require to 
allow the validation and assessment of planning applications, in addition to those national 
information requirements set out in primary legislation. National Planning Practice Guidance 
and the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order 2015 
requires local planning authorities to review their local validation requirements. This report 
seeks Members views regarding the operation of the current Local Validation List and draft 
consultation survey, and support for engaging in wider public consultation.  

Recommendations: 

1. That Members provide their views on the Local Validation List and draft survey 
(appendix 2). 

2. That Members support a public consultation being undertaken to gather wider views 
to inform the update of the Local Validation List. 

Key Implications: 

Item Implications 

Legal Reviewing the Local Validation list will ensure the Council meets 
its duties as set out in National Planning Practice Guidance 
and the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) Order 2015 
 

Finance and Value for 
Money 

None – review including consultation will be covered within 
existing budgets 

Corporate Plan Following objectives of the Gravesham Corporate Business Plan: 

 Place: a dynamic borough; defined by a vibrant and productive 
local economy taking advantage of growth in the area, 
supported by its strong and active community 

 Progress: an entrepreneurial authority; commercial in outlook 
and committed to continuous service improvement, 
underpinned by a skilled workforce and strong governance 
environment  

 

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



2 

Climate Change  Not directly applicable. 

 
 

1. Background 

1.1 A local planning authority can only request supporting information with a planning 
application where this is specified on a formally adopted ‘local list’. This local list 
seeks to provide clarity information requirements for applicants and 
helps ensure we have all documentation required to allow the proper 
consideration of applications in addition to the basic documentation required by 
primary legislation, early in the process.  

1.2 By requiring this detail as part of the planning application, it is often possible to 
prevent the need for conditions that would require further submissions post-
decision.  This will reduce timescales for implementing permissions as well as 
reducing pressure on workload and resources.  

1.3 The submission of a valid application for planning permission requires:  

 a completed application form  

 compliance with national information requirements  

 the correct application fee  

 provision of local information requirements  

1.4 In respect to the final bullet above i.e. a local planning authority’s request for 
supporting information with a planning application, this needs to be specified via a 
formally adopted ‘local list’. Government is clear that local planning authorities 
should only request supporting information that is relevant, necessary and 
material to the application in question, and these requirements should be kept to 
the minimum needed to make decisions. 

2. Purpose of a local list 

2.1 The purpose of the Local List is to enable the Local Planning Authority to define 
what information is necessary to ensure that the application adequately describes 
the impact of the proposed development, in order to better enable decision-
makers and interested persons to understand the implications of that 
development, and whether it is in accordance with, or contrary to planning policy 
and other material considerations. 

2.2 Therefore, the Local Validation List identifies the information that the Council will 
normally require to be able to register, assess and determine a planning 
application. The level of information required depends on the size and type of the 
application as well as the specific site constraints and the nature of the 
development. This means that not all the items listed will apply in every case. And 
hence the inclusion of the column “When required?” as shown by the extract 
image below: 

Page 8



3 

 

 

3. The current local validation list 

3.1 In late 2019 / early 2020, the Council consulted for 6 weeks, on the form and 
content of the Local List of Validation Requirements for Planning Applications. The 
consultation included: 

 228 emails to Internal / External Consultees, Councillors and Parishes 

 339 emails to Agents 

 Links provided on our webpage 

 Information added to email signatures of planning staff 

 Information added to all neighbour letters and decision notices sent 

3.2 As explained in the presentation to the Strategic Environment Committee in 
February 2020, we received 13 responses: 

 6 from Statutory Consultees (PLA, Historic England, Highways England, 
Environment Agency, KCC x 2) 

 1 Parish Council 

 1 internal council department 

 5 other responses, from members of the public, agents & architects 

3.3 The list was approved by the Portfolio Holder and it went live on 1 April 2020. 

3.4 The list is available on our website via the following webpage 
https://www.gravesham.gov.uk/planning/guides-planning-applications  

Page 9

https://www.gravesham.gov.uk/planning/guides-planning-applications


4 

4. The review process 

4.1 The Government National Planning Practice Guidance recommends a three-step 
review process:  

4.1.1 Step 1: Reviewing the existing local list = Local planning authorities are 
advised that they need to identify the drivers for each item on their existing 
local list of information requirements. These drivers should be statutory 
requirements, policies in the National Planning Policy Framework or 
development plan or published guidance that explains how adopted policy 
should be implemented.  

4.1.2 Having identified their information requirements, local planning authorities 
should decide whether they need to revise their existing local list. Where a 
local planning authority decides that no changes are necessary, it should 
publish an announcement to this effect on its website and republish its 
local list.  

4.1.3 Step 2: Consulting on proposed changes = Where a local planning 
authority considers that changes are necessary, the proposals should be 
issued to the local community, including applicants and agents, for 
consultation.  

4.1.4 Step 3: Finalising and publishing the revised local list = Consultation 
responses should be taken into account by the local planning authority 
when preparing the final revised list. The revised local list should be 
published on the local planning authority’s website. 

5. Our review 

5.1 In line with step 1 of the process, we have reviewed the existing list and consider 
changes are necessary. In respect to policies in the National Planning Policy 
Framework, we have considered the proposed changes published in 2022 as well 
as the 2021 version. 

5.2 We are assuming that the majority of changes that will be needed to the Local List 
and guidance will be to bring it up to date with the relevant areas of planning 
legislation, policy and guidance upon which the requirements are based. 
However, we also want to see if there are any changes wanted by applicants and 
agents and therefore we are proposing to undertake a time limited online survey 
to gather such views, a draft of the survey form is attached as appendix 2. 

6. Background Documents  

6.1 Minutes for Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee - Tuesday, 4 February 
2020  

Lead Officer:  Wendy Lane 

Email:  wendy.lane@gravesham.gov.uk  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10

mailto:wendy.lane@gravesham.gov.uk


5 

Secondary Implications  

Risk Assessment Not having an update to date Local Validation list could provide confusion for 
applicants, officers, Members and the Planning Inspectorate (if planning decisions 
are refused). 

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment 

 

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process.  

a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 
processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data?  

A definition of each type of data can be found on the Information 
Commissioner’s Office website via the above links. 

No 

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice? 

N / A 

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk. 

N / A 

Equality Impact 
Assessment 

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer. 

No 

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer. 

No 

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above 

Crime and Disorder N / A 

Digital and website 
implications 

Consultation to be set up similar to that in 2019 
https://localplan.gravesham.gov.uk/connect.ti/localvl/consultationHome 

 

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults 

N / A 

 

Page 11

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk
https://localplan.gravesham.gov.uk/connect.ti/localvl/consultationHome


This page is intentionally left blank



1. Gravesham Borough Council's Validation
Checklist Questionnaire.

Local Validation List Survey 2023

The local list of vaidation requirements (the list) includes details of mandatory information
that an applicant is required to submit with every planning application. The list includes both
national and local requirements.
 
The  list endeavours to provide an applicant with clear guidance on when certain plans or
documents are required, as well as what those plans should identify or what type of
information should be included. It has applied to all planning applications submitted to the
Council since 1 April 2020 onwards.
 
In line with Government requirements, the Council is now seeking to review the local list of
validation requirements to ensure changes that have occurred at the national and local level
regarding planning are re�ected in a revised list.
 
Prior to updating the list, we are seeking to obtain your views to ensure the list remains
effective for both applicants and the Council. This will ensure that when making a planning
application, all the relevant information is submitted to the Council for the Council to be able to
accept the application as valid and then proceed to consider and make a decision on your
proposals within timeframes set by the Government.

1. What best describes you and your application history?

Householder
Application

Minor
Development

(under 10
units)

Major
Development

Change
of use

Listed
Building

Other minor
non

householder
development

I have used the
validation list
as a applicant
on my own,
without using
an Agent.

Page 13



Householder
Application

Minor
Development

(under 10
units)

Major
Development

Change
of use

Listed
Building

Other minor
non

householder
development

I am an Agent
and have used
the list on
behalf of a
client.

Council
Employee.

Other Applicant
please specify.

Comments:

2. How often have you used the validation list?

Comments:

I have not used the validation list. (Please explain why?)

Once

A few times

Over ten times

Other please specify

Page 14



0

0

3. How do you �nd completing the requirements of the Validation List?

Please indicate, with the 1-5 Scale.

1 Easy - 5 Hard

1 Takes a short
time to
complete - 5
Takes too long

Please expand

4. Is the Local List clear in explaining what information is required to support a
planning application?

If No, please specify why and let us know what we could do to improve the list:

5. Is there anything missing that should be included in the Local List?

Yes

No

Yes

Page 15



If Yes, please specify what is missing and we should include:

6. Is there anything included within the Local List that should be removed?

If Yes, please specify what should be removed and why:

7. Do you have a suggestion that would improve the validation process?

8. What should the lead in period be before the revised Local List is adopted by the
Council for use?

No

Yes

No

Page 16



1

(a minimum of 1 month between the consultation ending and its requirements
coming into effect will be necessary.)

 Months

Finish Survey

Powered by 

Page 17

https://www.smartsurvey.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Classification: Public 

Key Decision: No 

Gravesham Borough Council 

Report to: Strategic Environment Committee 

Date: 29 March 2023 

Reporting officer: Wendy Lane - Assistant Director (Planning)  
Simon Hookway - Assistant Director (Communities) 
 

Subject: Corporate Performance Update: Quarter Three 2022-23 

Purpose and summary of report:  

To present Members of the Strategic Environment Committee with an update against the 
Performance Management Framework, as introduced within the council’s Corporate Plan, for 
Quarter Three 2022-23 (October to December 2022). 
 

Recommendations: 

1. This report is for information purposes only.  

Key Implications: 

Item Implications 

Legal The council’s Corporate Plan is an integral part of the authority’s 
policy framework as defined by the Constitution. The new Plan will 
ensure the council has in place an effective framework to deliver 
its responsibilities and ensure better results for vulnerable local 
residents, with the assistance of relevant partner agencies. 
 

Finance and Value for 
Money 

There are no significant costs associated with the monitoring of 
the Corporate Plan from which council activities should be based 
and which therefore should be accounted for as part of on-going 
financial planning processes. 
 

Corporate Plan The council’s adopted Corporate Plan sets the strategic ambition 
and objectives for the authority over the 2019-23 period. This 
report provides the Committee with a quarterly assessment of how 
the council is delivering against its objectives through its 
Performance Management Framework. 
 

Climate Change Climate change as a strategic theme underpins the projects, 
initiatives and work involved in the delivery of the council's 
Corporate Plan. As a core policy commitment of the council, 
efforts in this area are represented within corporate objective #1: 
People. 
 

Page 19 Agenda Item 6



2 

 
1. Introduction 

1.1 In October 2019 the council formally adopted its Corporate Plan for 2019-23. The 
plan sets out the authority’s ambition for the borough, complete with a suite of 
corporate objectives and supporting policy commitments that will shape the 
council’s activities over the four-year period.   

1.2 In order to evaluate if the council is effectively achieving against its stated policy 
commitments, and is ultimately delivering consistently high-quality services, a 
sound performance management process is required to be implemented.  

1.3 Developed by senior council officers and Cabinet portfolio holders, the council’s 
Corporate Plan presents a Performance Management Framework (PMF) that 
forms the basis of reporting corporate performance to Members and residents.  

2. Performance management: process 

2.1 The effective management of the council relies upon good quality and timely 
performance information on which to base informed executive decisions.  

2.2 Appendix 1 to this report provides the Strategic Environment Committee with an 
overview of the council’s performance against the Corporate Plan for Quarter 
Three 2022-23, covering the period October to December 2022.   

2.3 Statistical performance over the period is presented separately in tabular and 
graphical form for all indicators. Where any data is not presented, this will relate 
either to those indicators reported on an annual basis or, alternatively, where data 
has not been submitted in time for the presentation of the report. Any outturns 
where data has been unable to be reported will be presented within the next 
appropriate reporting cycle.  

2.4 Alongside statistical content, the Appendix provides supporting detailed qualitative 
updates outlining what activity the council has delivered, and what is to be taken, 
to successfully realise the Corporate Plan’s objectives and policy commitments 
relating to the portfolio for the 2019-23 period.    

2.5 This report is for information purposes only. 
 

3. Appendices 

3.1 The following documents are to be published with the report:  

Appendix 1: Strategic Environment Portfolio – Q3 2022-23 
 

4. Background papers 

 Gravesham Borough Council: Corporate Plan 2019-23.  

 Gravesham Borough Council: PMF 2019-23. 

 
Lead Officer:  

 
Wendy Lane - Assistant Director (Planning)  

Email:  wendy.lane@gravesham.gov.uk 

Page 20

https://www.gravesham.gov.uk/corporateplan
https://www.gravesham.gov.uk/performance


3 

 

Secondary Implications  

Risk Assessment Implementation of a PMF allows the council to evidence how successful it is in 
achieving against its stated objectives and provides residents accountability in how 
it is administering its resources. 

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment 

 

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process.  

a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 
processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data?  

A definition of each type of data can be found on the Information 
Commissioner’s Office website via the above links. 

No. 

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice? 

Click here to start typing 

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk. 

Click here to start typing 

Equality Impact 
Assessment 

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer. 

No. 

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer. 

No. 

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above 

Crime and Disorder Community safety is an integral theme of the Corporate Plan and work by the 
council in this area, alongside its key partners, will go towards delivering corporate 
objective #1: People. 

Digital and website 
implications 

In terms of the council's performance management framework, digital implications 
are represented and assessed through the outturns relating to  'PI 51: online self-
help forms'. 

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults 

The council's work in safeguarding children and vulnerable adults helps contribute 
towards delivering corporate objectives #1: People and #2: Place.  

 

Page 21

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Gravesham Borough Council - Corporate Plan 2019-23 00Delivering a Gravesham to be proud of

 S T R A T E G I C   E N V I R O N M E N T
P O R T F O L I O

Performance   report 
Q  3  :  2  0  2  2  -  2  3

Delivering a Gravesham to be proud of

P
age 23



P I  14 Total number of net additional homes added to the council tax valuation list

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 21 24 53 14

2020-21 45 71 17 69

2021-22 49 124 122 88

2022-23 138 120 86

P I  15 Gross number of affordable homes delivered

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 64

2020-21 135

2021-22 230

2022-23

During this period, approval of condition applications were given for Armoury Drive (20220955) and 
land at 270-340 Valley Drive (20221013) where the Council was the applicant.

Approval of condition applications for condition 15 (20211313) and condition 29 (20220815) for Land 
at Market Square and Horn Yard Car Parks New Swan Yard Gravesend (The Charter) were also 
made.

A minor material amendment application (20220915) for the Former Gravesend and North Kent 
Hospital (M Block) was approved in November. The amendments were in respect to the conversion 
building only and included amendments to unit mix, internal layouts and parking, introduction of 
additional private and shared amenity space, elevational changes and amended material palette.

In October, the Council received a consultation from the Ebbsfleet Development Corporation on 
Ebbsfleet Central East (20221088). The application is an outline planning application (with all matters 
reserved) for mixed-use development comprising demolition of the existing car parking, structures 
and station forecourt and provision of residential dwellings (Use Class C3); flexible commercial, 
business and service uses (Use Class E) to allow provision of retail, offices, restaurants/cafes, 
nurseries, and healthcare facilities; flexible learning and non-residential institutions (Use Class F1); 
flexible local community uses (Use Class F2); hotel use (Use Class C1); residential institutions (Use 
Class C2); and Sui Generis uses to allow provision of co-living and student accommodation, public 
houses/drinking establishments, and theatres/cinemas. Associated works include hard and soft 
landscaping, a River Park, car parking and multi-storey car parks, pedestrian, cycle and internal 
vehicular network, and other ancillary infrastructure; and associated crossings, highway accesses, 
and junction improvements. Observations were provided in December.

Six affordable homes were handed over to Town and Country Housing:
- 4 x 2 bed 3-person affordable rent houses;
- 1 x 2 bed 3-person shared ownership house; and
- 1 x 2 bed 3-person shared ownership house.

There were no other completions by other housing associations or GBC.

In addition to the Housing Association completions for quarter three, GBC continues to build to 
meet local affordable housing demand. We currently have 54 units on site varying in size from 
one-bedroom bungalows, one and two bed general needs flats and a three-bed disabled adapted 
flat built for a specific household in need. The next homes nearly ready for completion are at 
Valley Drive where we are expecting handover of 16 general needs units for affordable rent in 
February and a further 32 homes for the over 55’s on the same site, including further wheelchair 
adapted homes, in late March/ early April 2023.

Current planning applications for homes in future years by the Council include 46 homes for rent 
at St Columbas, decision expected in February. A further planning application is due to be 
submitted by the team for 8 affordable homes for local people at Istead Rise in February.

#1 PEOPLE 

Affordable Housing update 

P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 
1. Deliver an ambitious and diverse programme of building: increase the supply of high

quality market and affordable housing.

Additional homes update

Annual indicator

a proud community; where residents can call a safe, clean 
and attractive borough their home.

0

50

100

150

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

0

100

200

300

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

P
age 24



P I  28 % rate of vacant town centre retail properties

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 8.9% 8.7% 8.7% 9.0%

2020-21 11.2% 11.1% 12.3% 12.0%

2021-22 12.4% 12.0% 11.4% 10.7%

2022-23 12.0% 12.0% 12.8%

P I  29 Average weekly Town Centre footfall

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 117,111 115,228 106,208 94,276

2020-21 40,386 91,077 72,701 47,360

2021-22 81,812 89,650 86,593 78,274

2022-23 88,954 91,501 85,075

1. Enhance the vibrancy of the Gravesham economy: deliver a programme of strategic 
regeneration schemes, supported by an effective Town Centre team. 
Vacancy rates in the Town Centre increased to 12.8% in Q3 compared with 12% in Q2.  The 
figure is higher than the same quarter in 2021/22 and traditionally the take up of commercial units 
in the run up to Christmas would improve.  Vacancy rates remain around three/four percentage 
points above pre-pandemic levels.  

Works continue on a number of premises in the Town to bring them back into a marketable state.  
Sub-division of the large (former Discount UK/Woolworths) unit at the corner of High Street/King 
Street is nearing completion and are being marketed.  Residential developments above will help 
increase the number of people living in the Town Centre.   

Nationally the vacancy rate in Town Centres dropped slightly to 13.8% towards the end of 2022 
(British Retail Consortium).  This rate has been falling consistently over 5 Quarters.  Retail parks 
(9.0%) are performing far better than High Streets, but shopping centres are faring less well 
(18.2%).

Town Centre footfall decreased in Q3, consistent with the same quarter 2021/22.  The figure for 
this quarter remains around 80% of pre-pandemic levels. Traditionally, the run up to Christmas 
would see an increase in footfall this quarter above other quarters, but the loss of larger national 
chains and competition from online shopping is clearly impacting footfall in the Town.    

Nationally Town Centre High Street footfall increased in December by 19.7% over the previous 
month.

#2 PLACE 
a dynamic borough; defined by a vibrant and productive local economy taking 

advantage of growth in the area, supported by its strong and active community.
P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

0%

5%

10%

15%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

0

30,000

60,000

90,000

120,000

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

P
age 25



P I  30 Total rateable value of all commercial properties    

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 £64,341,435 £64,368,585 £64,420,185 £64,751,422

2020-21 £64,801,072 £64,759,342 £64,636,262 £65,463,462

2021-22 £64,894,183 £64,980,178 £64,913,348 £66,622,768

2022-23 £66,654,388 £66,160,488 £66,197,988

P I  31 Total number of vacant commercial properties 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 N/A 247 240 237

2020-21 217 207 194 186

2021-22 193 207 209 208

2022-23 201 213 210

a dynamic borough; defined by a vibrant and productive local economy taking 
advantage of growth in the area, supported by its strong and active community.P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

2. Raise Gravesham’s economic profile: develop business and transport infrastructure and 
improve local land usage through a diversified commercial premises portfolio.

#2 PLACE 

An Employment Land and Workspace Assessment is due to be commissioned, alongside a high 
profile consultation ("Big Conversation") with businesses and other local employers to establish 
current and longer term demand for modern and 'fit for purpose' business accommodation.

Progress by the Ebbsfleet Development Corporation, to bring forward a preferred scheme for new 
business units at Northfleet Embankment East, is awaited. 

Additional workspace units are included within the permitted Clifton Slipways development. 

Options for creating other co-working and tech space, are being scoped by the economic 
development team, in partnership with local businesses and stakeholders.   

The Creative Estuary Workspace Study is underway, which will look to identify buildings or other 
spaces that could accommodate workspace.    

£64,000,000

£65,000,000

£66,000,000

£67,000,000

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

175

200

225

250

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

P
age 26



P I  32 % net gain in active businesses                                          (refers to previous year)  

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 0.3%

2020-21 4.3%

2021-22 1.2%

2022-23

Annual indicator

#2 PLACE 
a dynamic borough; defined by a vibrant and productive local economy taking 

advantage of growth in the area, supported by its strong and active community.P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 
3. Promote a borough ‘open for business’: with a focus on retaining existing businesses and 
encouraging new start-ups, increase the level and range of business investment to drive 
economic growth. 
A "Big Conversation" campaign, was launched alongside the Kent Property Market Report, in 
November, seeking feedback from businesses and other employers about their land and premises 
needs. 

In October, 70 businesses and creative organisations attended a special Gravesham Business 
Network event at the Adult Education Centre, Gravesend (formerly known as the Victoria Centre). 
The event was co-hosted with the Community Learning & Skills service and included 
presentations about emerging town centre regeneration projects, opportunities for creative 
organisations in the Thames Estuary and local learning and skills opportunities. 

Gravesham Business Network hosted a Christmas networking event which included promotion of 
the corporate plan consultation.

Key dialogue has taken place with a number of large employers, to assist their investment in the 
Borough.

In this period, approvals for existing businesses in the Borough included:

- Jolly Drayman, Wellington Street = Proposed extension and alterations to form ground floor 
entrance to basement/cellar including rebuilding of boundary walls (20221052).

- The George Inn, Wrotham Road Meopham = Approval of condition 3 attached to listed building 
consent reference number 20220507 relating to details of prior to above ground works, details of 
the lead roof, including the lead rolls, and its intersections with the remaining roofs and the rear of 
the main building along with details of the eaves and rainwater goods (20220910).

- The Nuthouse Barber Shop, Parrock Street = Change of use of basement storage room within 
barbershop to be a tattoo parlour (sui generis) (20220612).

- Saturn Taxis, Barrack Row = Application for continued use of ground floor as a taxi office.

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

P
age 27



P I  33 % rate of resident unemployment 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 3.1% 3.3% 3.4% 3.5%

2020-21 7.3% 7.5% 7.3% 7.6%

2021-22 6.5% 5.6% 5.0% 4.7%

2022-23 4.1% 4.0% 4.1%

P I  34 % rate of youth unemployment

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 5.3% 5.6% 5.8% 6.0%

2020-21 12.2% 12.9% 12.5% 13.3%

2021-22 11.5% 9.0% 7.7% 7.2%

2022-23 6.2% 6.3% 6.2%

4. Improve economic conditions: alongside key partner agencies, develop a package of 
measures that support local enterprises and deliver a workforce with the skills needed by modern 
business. 

Officers continue to represent the Council at skills planning meetings related to the Lower 
Thames Crossing and requirements for the wider North Kent area. Also, digital inclusion issues.

To help equip GBC's social housing tenants with improved digital skills and access to the digital 
economy, Digital Kent services continue to be promoted via Your Home and Your Borough, 
including access to free laptops, broadband and mobile data (the latter via CAS Community 
Solutions). 

An ongoing social media and email marketing (via e-newsletter) campaign has been undertaken, 
with a focus on Net Zero / Decarbonisation, to help reduce the costs of doing business (in Your 
Borough, also).

P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 
a dynamic borough; defined by a vibrant and productive local economy taking 

advantage of growth in the area, supported by its strong and active community.

#2 PLACE 

0%

3%

6%

9%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

0%

5%

10%

15%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

P
age 28



P I  35 % of ‘Major’ planning applications processed on time 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 75.0% 100% 100% 83.3%

2020-21 100% 100% 100% 100%

2021-22 50.0% 100% 100% 100%

2022-23 100% 100% 100%

P I   36 % of ‘Non-Major’ planning applications processed on time

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20 61.4% 77.0% 77.0% 85.8%

2020-21 95.0% 100% 96.6% 95.8%

2021-22 97.7% 97.9% 94.2% 95.4%

2022-23 92.9% 95.7% 96.1%

In Q3:
* Major applications –100% (4 major decided,4 in time)
* Minor and other applications – 96.1% (180 applications decided, 173 in time).

In November, a planning application (20220575) from RSPB for wetland habitat restoration/ 
enhancement comprising of engineering works to enhance the in-field topography was permitted. 
The planning statement for this planning application explains that this project will deliver 
landscape-scale habitat restoration and innovative solutions for climate resilience in the Greater 
Thames Estuary. The project has three overarching objectives:

1. To enhance Higham Marshes SSSI Favourable condition where applicable and, concurrently,
to become high quality examples of these habitats. This will include delivering appropriate long-
term management solutions i.e. grazing, as well as introducing new hydrological controls by
undertaking groundworks and the installation of appropriate infrastructure to achieve the objective.

2. To make the site more climate resilient the effects of predicted effects of climate change.

3. To support breeding birds that have been in decline across the Greater Thames.
In December, prior approval (20221168) was granted for the proposed installation of Solar
Photovoltaics Panels on the flat roof area of Morrisons supermarket under Schedule 2, Class J,
Part 14 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015.

a dynamic borough; defined by a vibrant and productive local economy taking 
advantage of growth in the area, supported by its strong and active community.

5. Positively promote sustainable development: deliver a pro-active development
management service, underpinned by a sound Local Plan that protects and enhances our historic
natural and built environment.

P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

#2 PLACE 

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Review of the Local Validation List
	Appendix 2 - Draft Local Validation List Survey 2023 SEC

	6 Q3 2022-23 Corporate Performance Report
	Strategic Environment Portfolio - Q3 2022-23 (Appendix 1)
	Q3 2022-23
	Strategic Environment Portfolio - Q3 2022-23.pdf
	Q3 2022-23
	Strategic Environment Portfolio - Q2 2022-23 (Appendix 1).pdf
	Q2 2022-23
	Strategic Environment Portfolio - Q1 2022-23 (FINAL).pdf
	Q1 2022-23
	Strategic Environment Portfolio - Q1 2022-23 (Draft).pdf
	Q4 2021-22
	Strategic Environment Portfolio - Q3 2021-22.pdf
	Q3 2021-22
	Strategic Environment Portfolio - Q3 2021-22 (DRAFT).pdf
	Q3 2021-22











